
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, July 15, 2024 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Ulysses Brewer 

Pledge of Allegiance given by Fire Chief David Fletcher 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting July 1, 2024.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. (TWU) Executive Director Gary 

Smith 

3. Adopt a Resolution for the Acting City Manager to enter into a construction contract with 

Tatum Excavating Company, Inc., (TEC, Inc.) for the Rehabilitation Project of Draughn 

Street, Hastings Crossing, Manor Way, and Old Boyd Road. (PWD) Acting City Manager 

Tyler Richards 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private club 

application for 112 East 5th Street, Joe’s Italian Bistro. (Roberts) (ADMIN) Acting City 

Manager/Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 



 

5. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider the abandonment of undeveloped Princeton Street and 

Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley running east and west starting at Lot 27 and 

Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN ADDITION (Ward 1) 

Adopt an Ordinance approving the abandonment of undeveloped Princeton Street and Salem 

Street, as well as the undeveloped alley running east and west starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and 

ending at Lot 20 and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN ADDITION (Ward 1). (PWD-Planning) City 

Planner Jamie Finley 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

6. Adopt an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 13-2024, to correct the legal description of the 

property located at 951 Phillips Lane, to read N½ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ and part 

of the SW¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 28 West, Miller 

County, Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less. (Ward 1) (PWD-Planning) City Planner 

Jamie Finely  

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

7. Adopt a Resolution appointing Dr. Ellen Holmes to the Equalization Board. (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

8. Adopt a Resolution making an appointment to the Planning Commission. (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

9. Adopt a Resolution to reappoint Mary Beck and appoint Laura Cowling to the Public Facilities 

Board. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, August 5, 2024 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

2024 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmers Market - Open Tuesdays, Thursdays & Saturdays 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Salsa Contest - Saturday, July 20th 

 

  

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Live to the Beat - 9AM-10AM - Monday through Friday 

Ageless Grace - Mondays & Thursdays – 2PM - 3PM 

The Fabric Shop - Thursdays - 8AM - 2PM 

Quilters - Fridays - 9AM - 3PM 

Gym Open - Daily - 3PM - 5PM 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 

  



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting July 1, 2024.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, July 01, 2024 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Danny 

Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO, PRESENT: Acting City Manager Tyler Richards, City Attorney Josh Potter, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars, and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

Invocation given by Mayor Allen Brown. 

Pledge of Allegiance given by District Court Clerk Karen Reed. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Ramona Flowers, 1217 East 24th Street, asked the Board of Directors if they were having meetings 

with the citizens in their ward.  

PROCLAMATION(S) 

1. Presented a proclamation declaring July as Parks and Recreation Month. (ADMIN) 

PRESENTATION(S) 

2. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

 

Donna Story Bi-State Maintenance 5 Years 

Karen Reed Courts 25 Years 

Michael Cagle TWU 5 Years 

Fanny Williams TWU 5 Years 

Brandon Kidd TAFD 5 Years 

Eric Beach TAPD 20 Years 

 

CONSENT 

Assistant Mayor Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Brewer.  

The motion carried and the following item was approved:  



 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting June 17, 2024.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

4. Resolution No. 2024-50 set the date for a Public Hearing concerning the abandonment of 

undeveloped Princeton Street and Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley running east 

and west starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN 

ADDITION (Ward 1). (PWD-Planning) City Planner Jamie Finley 

5. Resolution No. 2024-51 authorized the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract with C. 

W. Fence Co., for the purchase and installation of fencing at the Texarkana Arkansas Police 

Department Union Training Facility. (TAPD) Interim Police Chief Ed Chattaway 

REGULAR 

6. Ordinance No. 13-2024 rezoned property located at 951 Phillips Lane from R-3 Low Density 

Residential to A-1 Limited Mixed Use Rural for the purpose of building a shop prior to and 

in front of the planned residence. (Ward 1) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Jamie Finley 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Assistant Mayor Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Assistant Mayor Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause was added at the request of the property owner.   

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval of the Board 



 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Hart.  

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted.  

 

7. Resolution No. 2024-52 approved the Memorandum of Understanding between Texarkana 

Regional Airport, Texarkana College, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas and the City of 

Texarkana, Texas for the 2026 Airshow. (This item was TABLED at the June 17, 2024, Board 

of Directors’ meeting) (ADMIN) Acting City Manager Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hollibush, Seconded 

by Assistant Mayor Hart.     

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

8. Resolution No. 2024-53 amended Resolution No. 2023-23 to reflect A.C.A. § 14-47-121 

regarding the duties of the Acting City Manager. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hollibush, Seconded 

by Director Brewer.     

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.  

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris asked when the requests he had put into the Public Works Department over a year 

ago would be completed.  He also asked what needed to be done in order for Inghram Swimming 

Pool to be placed on the Historic Marker Register.     

Director Hollibush said recently the Advertising & Promotion Commission approved a rebranding 

with a new logo and it launched today.  He said, the previous logo, “Our Texarkana” became 

“Experience Texarkana” and the community seemed to like it.   

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, July 15, 2024  

 



 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Assistant Mayor Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 6:37 PM. 

APPROVED this the 15th day of July 2024. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a 

contract for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater 

treatment. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E, Executive Director 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment, with 

budgeted funds, for fiscal year 2024-2025.  Bids were advertised, and 

thirty-seven chemical specification packages were requested and mailed 

to prospective bidders in June.  Bids were received and opened at 2:00 

PM, June 11, 2024, on the following chemicals required for water and 

wastewater treatment for FY 2024-2025: Sodium Chlorite, Sulphur 

Dioxide, HTH (100# containers), Caustic Soda (bulk), Liquid Chlorine, 

Aluminum Sulfate, and Ortho-Polyphosphate. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: Not to exceed amount budgeted in FY 2024-2025 budget. 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: To be approved in FY 2024-2025 budget. 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Recommendations are for the low bid price per unit, from the listed 

vendors as shown on the bid tabulation sheet (ATTH 01), in an aggregate 

amount not to exceed the amount budgeted in the Texarkana Water 

Utilities, Departments 410, 420, 490, 520, 530 and 540 Operating Fund 

Budgets for FY 2024-2025. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and ATTH 01 Chemical Bid Tabulation Sheet. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, Texarkana Water Utilities advertised for bids for chemicals for water 

and wastewater treatment for use at the Wright Patman Water Treatment Plant, Millwood 

Water Treatment Plant, South Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant, and North Texarkana 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and the low bid price per unit is shown on the attached bid 

tabulation sheet; and 

 WHEREAS, the utility staff recommends acceptance of these bids, provided the 

aggregate amount does not exceed the amounts approved in the FY2024-2025 Budget; and   

 WHEREAS, the authorization for this expenditure meets all bidding requirements;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into contracts 

for the purchase of the chemicals with the suppliers for the corresponding low bids as 

specifically set forth on the attached tabulation, provided that the aggregate amounts do 

not exceed the amounts approved in the FY2024-2025 Budget. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

  

      ______________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



TABULATION OF BIDS -  June 11, 2024
FY 2024-2025 CHEMICAL BIDS

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Sodium Chlorite
International Dioxcide, Inc              40 
Whitecap Drive                            North 

Kingstown, RI.  02852

$0.582       
$0.600       

Per Pound

$0.5626                   
Per Pound

2 37

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Sulphur Dioxide
PVS DX, Inc.                     1919 

San Jacintoport Blvd 
Houston, TX.  77015      

$2299.00      
Per Ton

$2189.00           
Per Ton

1 37

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

HTH (100# 
Containers)

Harcros Chemicals, Inc.    
1011 Jack Wells Blvd       

Shreveport, LA.  71107

$3.35       
$4.22         

Per Pound

$3.861               
Per Pound

2 37

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Caustic Soda 
(Bulk) Liquid 

Weight

PVS DX, Inc.                     1919 
San Jacintoport Blvd 
Houston, TX.  77015      

$0.2148      
$0.2248      
$0.2350      
$0.2400     
Per Wet 
Pound

$0.2450                        
Per Wet 
Pound

4 37

 
CHEMICAL COMPANY

BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Liquid Chlorine
PVS DX, Inc.                     1919 

San Jacintoport Blvd 
Houston, TX.  77015      

$1.1285         
Per Pound

$1.0735               
Per Pound

1 37

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Aluminum 
Sulfate

Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC     90 
East Halsey Rd.                 Parisppany, 

NJ.  07054

$366.85       
$385.00      
$489.00         

Per Dry Ton

$379.00               
Per Dry Ton

3 37

CHEMICAL COMPANY
BID FY    
2025

COST FY 
2024

BIDS 
RECEIVED

BIDS 
REQUESTED

Ortho-
Polyphosphate   

Drums

Hawkins, Inc.                  2381 
Rosegate            Roseville, 

MN.  55113

$0.96       
$0.99       

$1.006      
Per Pound

$1.015          
Per Pound

3 37

 

CHEMICAL PURCHASES PROJECTED FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution for the Acting City Manager to enter into a 

construction contract with Tatum Excavating Company, Inc., (TEC, 

Inc.) for the Rehabilitation Project of Draughn Street, Hastings Crossing, 

Manor Way, and Old Boyd Road. (PWD) Acting City Manager Tyler 

Richards 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tyler Richards, Acting City Manager/Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Approval of contract for road rehabilitation. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Contract for the Rehabilitation Project of Draughn Street, Hastings 

Crossing, Manor Way, and Old Boyd Road. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $1,324,091.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: Other Street Projects (Dept 149): 

Old Boyd Rd - $175,000 

Hastings Crossing - $250,000 

Manor Way - $475,000 

Street (Dept 141): 

Draughn - $150,000 

ARPA: 

Hastings Crossing - $350,000 

Draughn - $50,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 $1,324,091.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Bid Recommendation 

 



 RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after the Public Works Department solicited bids for the Draughn 

Street, Hastings Crossing, Manor Way, and Old Boyd Road Rehabilitation Projects, Tatum 

Excavating Company, Inc., (TEC, Inc.) submitted the low bid in the amount of 

$1,324,091.00; and 

WHEREAS, A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., reviewed the bids and found no errors 

in TEC, Inc.’s submission; and   

 WHEREAS, $1,324,091.00 was budgeted and is available;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract 

with TEC, Inc., for the rehabilitation projects set forth above with funding not to exceed 

$1,324,091.00.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

       ______________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application for 112 East 5th Street, Joe’s Italian 

Bistro. (Roberts) (ADMIN) Acting City Manager/Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

REQUEST: Prerequisite municipal approval to continue the application process 

through the State.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YES – to submit application to the state.  

SUMMARY: James Roberts is requesting prerequisite municipal approval to continue 

the application process through the State.  Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, 

all new private club applications must be submitted with an ordinance 

from the governing body of the county or municipality in which the 

private club wishes to be located, approving the application. James and 

Leah Roberts – (Leah 903-278-5165) 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and application  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE REQUEST 

FOR PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL 

OF A PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY JAMES 

ROBERTS, AS APPLICANT, ON BEHALF OF 

JOE’S ITALIAN BISTRO; DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in 

accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to 

submittal of certain applications to the ABC or its Director relating to private clubs, request has 

been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the application 

of James Roberts as applicant for Joe’s Italian Bistro, at 112 East 5th Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 

71854;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that:   

Section 1.  The request of James Roberts on behalf of Joe’s Italian Bistro, for prerequisite 

municipal approval of an application for a private club at 112 East 5th Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 

71854 as required by Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules and Regulations of the ABC is 

hereby granted.  

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of 

any business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state 

or federal law, rule or regulation, now or hereafter adopted.  

Section 3.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency 

is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024. 

 

___________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 



 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 
 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Conduct a Public Hearing to consider the abandonment of undeveloped 

Princeton Street and Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley 

running east and west starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 

and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN ADDITION (Ward 1) 

Adopt an Ordinance approving the abandonment of undeveloped 

Princeton Street and Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley 

running east and west starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 

and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN ADDITION (Ward 1). (PWD-Planning) 

City Planner Jamie Finley 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: PWD-Planning  

PREPARED BY: Jamie Finley, City Planner 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance vacate an undeveloped right-of-way dedicated to the 

public for access consisting of undeveloped Princeton Street and Salem 

Street, as well as the undeveloped alley running east and west starting at 

Lot 27 and 8 and ending at Lots 20 and 15 of ROSELAWN ADDITION.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YES – Applicant wants to construct a strip mall or shopping center.   

SUMMARY: Conduct a public hearing regarding the recommendation of vacating a 

right-of-way dedicated to public for access consisting of undeveloped 

Princeton Street and Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley 

running east and west starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 

and Lot 15 or ROSELAWN ADDITION and adopt a resolution 

approving the abandonment. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 



RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Petition, Memo to Acting City Manager, Map 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE 

VACATION AND ABANDONMENT OF 

UNDEVELOPED RIGHTS OF WAY IN THE 

ROSELAWN ADDITION, DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, a petition was duly filed by Bill and Vickey Whiseant with the Board 

of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, asking that the Board vacate and abandon 

the following described undeveloped rights-of-way in ROSELAWN ADDITION: 

 

Princeton Street between Parcel 00549300 and 2812 East Street, Salem 

Street between East Street and Princeton Street and the alley running east 

and west starting at Lots 27 and 8 and ending at Lots 20 and 15 in 

ROSELAWN ADDITION and consisting of .6072 acres more or less.   

 

 WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law, the Board of Directors conducted 

a public hearing and heard all persons desiring to be heard on the question, and has 

ascertained that the undeveloped rights-of-way described above have not been actually 

used by the public for a period of at least five (5) years subsequent to the filing of the plat, 

and that public interest and welfare will not be adversely affected by the abandonment of 

such rights-of-way;  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

 Section 1:  The City of Texarkana, Arkansas, hereby releases, vacates, and 

abandons all of its rights, together with the rights of public generally, in and to undeveloped 

Princeton Street, Salem Street, as well as the undeveloped alley running east and west 

starting at Lot 27 and Lot 8 and ending at Lot 20 and Lot 15 of the ROSELAWN 

ADDITION in Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas.  

 Section 2:  A copy of this ordinance duly certified by the City Clerk, shall be 

filed in the office of the recorder of Miller County, Arkansas, and recorded in the deed 

records of the County.   



 Section 3:  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passing. 

 Section 4:  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency 

clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage and approval.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

       _____________________________ 

         Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF ARKANSAS  ) 

COUNTY OF MILLER  ) 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ) 

 

 On this, the _____ day of _____________________, 2024, before me a notary 

public, the above-signed officers, personally appeared known to me to be the person whose 

name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same 

for the purposes therein contained.  In witness hereof, I hereunto set my hand and official 

notary seal.   

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Signature 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Tyler Richards, Acting City Manager 
  
FROM: Jamie Finley, City Planner 
  
DATE:  June 12, 2024  

 
SUBJECT:  Board of Directors Agenda item for 7-1-2024, Request a public 

hearing to vacate a dedicated public access easement (ROW) – 
Petition by Bill and Vickey Whiseant, 1262 S. Rondo Road, 
Texarkana, AR. 71854, to abandon an undeveloped public right-of-
way.   
 

LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

Princeton Street between Parcel 00549300 and 2812 East Street, 
Salem Street between East Street and Princeton Street and the 
alley running east and west starting at Lots 27 and 8 and ending at 
Lots 20 and 15 in ROSELAWN ADDITION and consisting of .6072 
acres more or less.  

 
REASON FOR 
REQUEST: 

The applicant owns seven of the nine parcels adjacent to the rights-
of-way and alley.  Applicant wishes to consolidate his property for 
the long range purpose of constructing a strip mall or shopping 
center. 
 

 
EXISTING LAND 
USES: 
 

Site:     ROW 
North:  Wooded 
East:    Commercial 
South:  Residential 
West:   Wooded 

  
EXISTING ZONING: Site:      C3 Open Display Commercial  

North:    C3 Open Display Commercial  
East:     C3 Open Display Commercial  
South:   C3 Open Display Commercial and W1 Warehousing and 
              Wholesale 
West:    C3 Open Display Commercial  
 

 



 
 
 

 

COMPATIBILITY 
WITH EXISTING 
ZONING: 
 

Property is designated at “Mixed Use Commercial” (MUC).  Mixed 
Use Commercial is described as “Mixed use commercial areas 
allow for people to live, work, shop and play in the same area. 
Designed to accommodate a mix of uses and development in the 
City with a variety of buildings. Development is encouraged to take 
place in a more traditional square, node, or downtown-like 
development pattern when possible.”  Property owner owns all the 
lots with the exception of two and wishes to consolidate his property.   

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
  

Responses from utility companies when asked if they objected to 
the abandonment request or requested an easement: 
 
Summit – Still awaiting response at this time. 
                Emails sent: May 21, 2024 
                                     May 29, 2024 
 
Southwest Arkansas Telephone – Nathan Hyman, May 29, 2024 
     “We do not currently have any facilities in this ROW.” 
 
Southwest Arkansas Electric – David McDowell, May 21, 2024: 
     “Southwest Arkansas Electric is good with this.” 
 
Windstream – Still awaiting response at this time. 
                         Emails sent:  May 21, 2024 
                                               May 29, 2024   
 
Cableone/Sparklight  – Joe Langley, May 22, 2024: 
     “No problem that I can see.” 
 
TWU –  Gary Smith, June 3, 2024: 

1. “There is an existing twelve-inch (12”) sanitary sewer main 

parallel and adjacent to the northern ROW of US Highway 

71 and an existing six-inch (6”) water main parallel and 

adjacent to a portion of the northern ROW of US Highway 

71.  

 
2. The Utility does not object to the abandonment of the 

ROW’s shown if a minimum 20’ utility easement is retained 

over our water and sewer mains.” 
 

  
 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the 

following – “All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations 



 
 
 

 

shall be adopted through the following procedure for adoption of 
plans and regulations: 
 

(1)  (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on  
       the plans, ordinances, and regulations proposed under this  
       subchapter. 
 

 (B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a  
 newspaper of general circulation in the city, at least (1) time  
 fifteen days prior to the hearing. 

 
(2)  Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be 

 adopted, and proposed ordinance and regulations may be 
 recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a  
 majority vote of the entire commission.   

 
(3)  Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of 

 ordinances and regulations, the commission shall certify 
 adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and 
 regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and 

recommended ordinances and regulations to the 
commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority 
vote of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or 
resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or 
regulations submitted by the commission.  However, nothing 
in this subchapter shall be construed to limit the city board’s 
authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote 
of a majority of the council. 

  
(5)  Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted    

            plans, ordinances, and regulations shall be filed in the  
            office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the 
            county recorder of the counties in which territorial 
            jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 
            regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate  
            limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, May 26, 2024, 
edition of the Texarkana Gazette.   
 
ROW abandonments do not require additional notification as all 
adjacent property owners are petitioners.   

   
OPPOSITION: None  



 
 
 

 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on June 11, 2024, and certified recommendation to abandon 
the unused, undeveloped public easement described previously in this document under 
“Legal Description”.  A motion was made by Commissioner Randall Hickerson seconded by 
Commissioner Adger Smith.  Motion passed with a roll call vote of 7-0, with none absent.   
  

Anderson Neal, Chairperson          Yes 
Anita Pickett                                    Yes 
Adger Smith                                    Yes 
Chris Owens                                    Yes 
Jason Dupree                                  Yes   
Randall Hickerson                            Yes 
Boots Thomas                                  Yes 

  
BOARD ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

The City Board is requested to: 
 

Adopt a resolution to set a date for a hearing on July1, 2024. 
Hold a public hearing July 15, 2024. 
 

  
 To abandon the ROW, the Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated 

requires every ordinance to be read three times before adoption.  
These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the 
second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the 
ordinance.   



Princeton

Salem

Alley

Alley

East Street ROW Abandonment

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS
Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom,

Override 1City Limits Outline

Texarkana, AR

Street Centerline

Highway

5/21/2024, 4:01:19 PM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS |





 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 13-2024, to correct the 

legal description of the property located at 951 Phillips Lane, to read N½ 

of the SE¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ and part of the SW¼ of the SE¼ of 

the SE¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 28 West, Miller County, 

Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less. (Ward 1) (PWD-Planning) 

City Planner Jamie Finely  

 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Jamie Finley 

REQUEST: Amend Ordinance No. 13-2024, to correct the legal description of the 

property located at 951 Phillips Lane, to read N½ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ 

of the SE¼ and part of the SW¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼, Section 6, 

Township 16 South, Range 28 West, Miller County, Arkansas 

containing 8 acres more or less. 

 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YES – Homeowner plans to build a shop prior to and in front of the 

planned residence.  

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommendation is amendment of this 

ordinance.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, location map, zoning map 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

13-2024 TO CORRECT THE LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED 

AT 951 PHILLIPS LANE; DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, adopted Ordinance No. 13-2024, on 

July 1, 2024, which provided for the amendment of the Land Use Plan and to rezone the 

property located at 951 Phillips Lane, as applicable, from R-3 Low Density Residential to 

A-1 Limited Mixed Use Rural; and  

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 13-2024, contains an error in the legal description and 

the property at 951 Phillips Lane should be correctly described as: 

 

N ½ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ and part of the SW ¼ of the SE 

¼ of the SE ¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 28 West, Miller 

County, Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less.   

  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

Section 1: Ordinance No. 13-2024, should be amended to rezone the following 

property from R-3 Low Density Residential to A-1 Limited Mixed Use Rural: 

 

N ½ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ and part of the SW ¼ of the SE 

¼ of the SE ¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 28 West, Miller 

County, Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less.   

 

Section 2: Ordinance No. 13-2024, as hereby amended, is ratified, and 

confirmed. 

Section 3: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency 

clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage and approval.   

  



PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

       ______________________________ 

           Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Tyler Richards, Acting City Manager 

  

FROM: Jamie Finley, City Planner 

  

DATE:  July 10, 2024  

 

SUBJECT:  Board of Directors Agenda item for 7-15-2024,  Adopt an Ordinance to amend 

Ordinance No. 13-2024, to correct the legal description of the property located at 

951 Phillips Lane, to read N½ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ and part of the 

SW¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 28 West, 

Miller County, Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less. (PWD-Planning) City 

Planner Jamie Finely  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

Property is legally described as the N½ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼ and 
part of the SW¼ of the SE¼ of the SE¼, Section 6, Township 16 South, Range 
28 West, Miller County, Arkansas containing 8 acres more or less. 

 

REASON FOR 

REQUEST: 

To correct Ordinance No 13-2024 which contained an incorrect legal description. 

 

EXISTING LAND 

USES: 

 

Site: Vacant 

North: New Haven Golf Course 

East: Wooded 

South: Single family residential and wooded 

West: Single-family residential and wooded 

  

EXISTING ZONING: Site: R3 Low Density Residential 

North: R3 Low Density Residential 

East: R3 Low Density Residential 

South: R3 Low Density Residential and M1 Limited Manufacturing West:

 R3 Low Density Residential 

 



 
 
 

 

COMPATIBILITY 

WITH EXISTING 

ZONING: 

 

The property located at 951 Phillips Lane is designated as Rural Residential in 

the 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  Rural Residential is described as “Preserves the 

rural residential character and the active agricultural uses within the City. 

Provides areas of single -family residential development on large lots or cluster 

developments.”  This property backs up to New Haven Golf Course and is 

surrounded on the other three sides by large lots making it compatible with the 

Land Use Plan currently in effect.  This property has been vacant since at least 

1995 and was purchased from the owners of New Haven Golf Course.  Property 

owners’ intention is to eventually build a single-family primary residence on the 

property. 

 

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 

 UTILITIES: Water:  12” on Phillips Lane 

  Sewer: None 

  Fire Hydrant: 35’ from southern most SE corner of property                                       

 

TRANSPORTATION: Local:  Phillips Lane 

   

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 

 

 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – 

“All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through 

the following procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 

 

(1)  (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on  

       the plans, ordinances, and regulations proposed under this  

       subchapter. 

 

 (B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a  

 newspaper of general circulation in the city, at least (1) time  

 fifteen days prior to the hearing. 

 

(2)  Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be 

 adopted, and proposed ordinance and regulations may be 

 recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a  

 majority vote of the entire commission.   

 

(3)  Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of 

 ordinances and regulations, the commission shall certify 

 adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and 

 regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

 

(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended 

ordinances and regulations to the commission for further study or 

rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire membership, may, by 

ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or 

regulations submitted by the commission.  However, nothing in this 

subchapter shall be construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall 

the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council. 

 



 
 
 

 

 

(5)  Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted    

            plans, ordinances, and regulations shall be filed in the  

            office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the 

            county recorder of the counties in which territorial 

            jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 

            regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate  

            limits.  

 

The required notice was originally published in the Sunday, May 26, 2024, 

edition of the Texarkana Gazette.  The City notified ten (10) property owners by 

regular postal mail within three hundred feet (300’) as required by the Texarkana 

Arkansas Code of Ordinances. 

   

OPPOSITION: None  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 

 

The Planning Commission originally met on June 11, 2024, and certified recommendation to rezone the property 

described previously in this document under “Legal Description”.  A motion was made by Commissioner Boots 

Thomas seconded by Commissioner Jason Dupree.  Motion passed with a roll call vote of 7-0, with none absent.  

It was subsequently discovered the legal description was incorrect.  The Planning Commission met on July 9, 

2024, and certified recommendation to correct the error.  The motion was made by Commissioner Randall 

Hickerson and seconded by Commissioner Anderson Neal.  Motion carried with a roll call vote of 6-0 with 1 

vacancy. 

  

Anderson Neal, Chairperson          Yes 

Anita Pickett                                    Yes 

Chris Owens                                    Yes 

Jason Dupree                                  Yes   

Randall Hickerson                            Yes 

Boots Thomas                                  Yes 

  

BOARD ACTION 

REQUESTED: 

The City Board is requested to approve the correction to the legal description as 

described previously in this document. 

  

 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three 

times before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting 

or at the second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the 

ordinance.   



De Leo A1 Rezoning

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS
Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom,

Override 1

City Limits Outline

Texarkana, AR

SiteAddressPoint

Texarkana AR Zoning

M-1

R-3

5/13/2024, 4:02:17 PM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS |



951 Phillips Lane

951 Phillips Address

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS
Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom,

Override 1City Limits Outline

Texarkana, AR

SiteAddressPoint

5/15/2024, 11:37:01 AM
0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Esri Community Maps Contributors, City of Texarkana, TWU, Arkansas GIS Office, Texas Parks & Wildlife, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS |



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution appointing Dr. Ellen Holmes to the Equalization 

Board. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Make appointment to the Equalization Board 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Appointment of Dr. Ellen Holmes to the Equalization Board for the term 

of June 2024----2027. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Make appointment to the Equalization Board 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, application, member list 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

WHEREAS, a vacancy exists on the Miller County Equalization Board; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that an appointment be made to fill the position;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment to the Miller County Equalization Board is 

hereby approved: 

Applicant Term 

 

Dr. Ellen Holmes June 2024----2027 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

       _________________________________ 

                  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



 

 

EQUALIZATION BOARD 

Miller County 

3 – YEAR TERMS 
 

Member Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     
     

Selected by Quorum Court 
Maggie Harris 

HarrisMaggie75@gmail.com 

870-818-1522 

5660 Line Ferry Road 

Texarkana, AR 71854 

 June 2021----2024  1 

     

Selected by Quorum Court 
Darla Douglas 

advantagerealty@yahoo.com 

1501 MC 154 

Doddridge, AR 71834 

 June 2022----2025 

(Unexpired term of 

Dan Bulter) 

 N/A 

     

Selected by School Districts 

Cylestine Thornton 

cylestinethornton@gmail.com 

903-824-0302 

6608 Harris Lane 

Texarkana, AR 71854 

 June 2022----2025  6 

     

Selected by County Judge 

Diane Phillips 

Diane870@swat.coop 

903-733-0308 

307 Miller County 20 

Texarkana, AR 71854 

  

June 2023----2026 

  

N/A 

     

Selected by Cities and Incorporated Towns 

Vacancy 
 June 2024----2027   

 

mailto:HarrisMaggie75@gmail.com
mailto:advantagerealty@yahoo.com
mailto:cylestinethornton@gmail.com
mailto:Diane870@swat.coop




 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making an appointment to the Planning 

Commission. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appointment to the Planning Commission. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Appointment of to the Planning Commission for the term of 05/06/2024-

---2027  (replace Adger Smith) 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, applications, and member list 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, a vacancy exists on the Texarkana, Arkansas, Planning Commission; 

and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that an appointment be made to fill the vacant 

position; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved: 
 

Applicant 
 

Term 
 

 

 

 

05/06/2024----2027 
(Adger Smith’s unexpired term) 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

______________________________     

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



Updated 05132024 
 
 

Planning Commission  
 

Authorized by A.C.A. 14-56-404----408, and Texarkana, Arkansas Code 19-16----19 

3 – Year Terms 
 

 Appointment Term Date Terms Ward 

     

Anderson Neal, Jr. 

Chairman 

7106 Tall Oaks 

501-655-1335 

501-425-0899 

an8613@gmail.com 

Resolution No. 2023-11 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2022----2025 3 6 

     

Randall R. Hickerson, DDS 

2805 Forest Avenue  

903-748-1603 cell 

phickerson@valornet.com 

Resolution No. 2023-11 

Reappointment 

05/06/2022----2025 3 1 

     

Clyde “Boots” Thomas 

5807 Deerwood Drive 

903-809-4111 cell 

bootst50@gmail.com 

Resolution No. 2023-38 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2023----2026 9 6 

     

Chris Owens 

3614 Garland Avenue 

214-545-7165 

Christylovegod1@gmail.com 

 Resolution No. 2024-37 

Appointment  

05/06/2023----2026 1   4 

     

Adger Smith 

308 Meadows Road 

903-824-4924 

adgersperf@aol.com 

Resolution No. 2024-39 

Reappointment  

05/06/2024----2027 7 3 

     

Anita Pickett 

1601 Beech Street 

870-200-4028 

Pickett9779@gmail.com 

Resolution No. 2024-40 

Appointment 

05/06/2024----2027 1 3 

     

Jason Dupree 

416 Meadows Road 

870-774-1925 home 

903-838-8574 work 

jdupr21@aol.com 

Resolution No. 2024-38 

Reappointment  

05/06/20024----2027 6 3 

     

7 - Members 

mailto:an8613@gmail.com
mailto:phickerson@valornet.com
mailto:boots@cableone.net
mailto:Christylovegod1@gmail.com
mailto:adgersperf@aol.com
mailto:Pickett9779@gmail.com
mailto:jdupr21@aol.com
















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to reappoint Mary Beck and appoint Laura Cowling 

to the Public Facilities Board. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Make appointments to the Public Facilities Board 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  

SUMMARY: Make appointments to the Public Facilities Board 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Make appointment to the Public Facilities Board 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, application, member list 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, a vacancies exists on the Public Facilities Board; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointments are hereby approved: 

 

Applicant Term 

 

Mary Beck 
 

07/17/2024----2029 

 

Laura Cowling 
 

07/17/2023----2026 
(TyRhonda Henderson’s unexpired term) 

  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of July, 2024.   

 

_____________________________                 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

 



Updated 02132024 
 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES BOARD 

5 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

     

Mary Beck 

  

Resolution No. 2023-61  

Reappointment 

07/17/2023----2024 2  

     

Eric Ethridge 

Media Manager 

City Hall 

Resolution No. 2023-61   

Reappointment 

07/17/2023----2025 2    

     

TyRhonda Henderson  

City Manager 

City Hall  

Resolution No. 2023-61  

Appointment 

 

07/17/2023----2026 1  

     

Tyler Richards 

Public Works Director 

City Hall  

Resolution No. 2023-61  

Reappointment  

 

07/17/2023----2027 2  

     

Jamie Finley 

City Planner 

City Hall 

Resolution No. 2023-61 

Reappointment  

07/17/2023----2028 2  

     

     

     

 

5 – Members 

 




	Top
	1.	Minutes
	item_07152024_ccd_minutes
	item_1_07012024_minutes

	2.	Chemical for Water and Wastewater Treatment
	item_2_07152024_twu_Chemical Bid Agenda
	Item 2 - Chemical Purchase
	item_07152024_twu_CHEMICAL VENDOR BIDS & RENEWALS 1

	3.	Street projects
	item_07152024_pwd_street rehab for Draughn, Hastings Crossin, Manor Way, Old Boyd Rd
	Item 3 - Street Rehab Projects
	item_07152024_pwd_street_rehab_Bid Recommendation

	4.	private club
	item_6_07152024_ccd_private club
	Item 6 - ABC app for Joe's Bistro

	5.	Abandonment
	item_4_07152024_pwd-planning_agenda form 2611 East _ROW abandonment
	Item 4 - Abandonment of ROW
	item_07152024_pwd_planning_Memo to CM for 2611 East ROW Abandonment
	item_07152024_pwd-planning_2611 East St ROW Abandonment Map
	item_07152024_pwd-planning_2611 East ROW Abandonment Petition

	6.	amend ordinance no 13-2024
	item_5_07152024_pwd_planning_Amend Agenda item Phillips Rezone
	Item 5 - Amend 13-2024
	item_5_07152024_Memo to CM for 951 Phillips Lane Rezoning Correction
	item_5_07152024_pwd-planning_rezone map_951 Phillips
	item_5_07152024_pwd-planning_map_rezone 951 Phillips

	7.	Equalization  Board
	item_07152024_ccd_equalization board
	Item 7 - Equalization Board
	item_07152024_ccd_2024_Equalization Board
	item_07152024_ccd_Ellen Homes_Equalization Board

	8.	Planning Commission
	item_07152024_ccd_PC appointment
	Item 8 - Planning Commission
	item_07152024_ccd_PC List
	item_07152024_ccd_PC_Mike Jones
	item_07152024_ccd_PC_Edward Lewis
	item_07152024_ccd_PC_Rosland Blair-Lewis
	item_07152024_ccd_PC_Cori Mobbs
	Item_07152024_ccd_PC_Roosevelt Thompson

	9.	Public Facilities
	item_9_07152024_ccd_pfb appointment
	Item 9 - Public Facilities Board
	item_9_07152024_ccd_2024_Public Facilities Board
	item_9_07152024_Mary Beck_07102024_PFB

	Bottom

